
 

 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

YECA GOVERNING BOARD 

Yolo Emergency Communications Agency, 35 N. Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA 95695 

September 2, 2015  
2:00 P.M. Public Session 

 
 

ALL ITEMS ARE FOR ACTION UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED WITH AN ASTERISK (*). 

    

 

1. Call to Order (2:00 PM)  

 

 

2. Public Comment * 

Speakers must state their name and city of residence for the record and limit their remarks to three 

minutes.  Members of the public audience may address the Governing Board on any item not on 

today’s agenda. No response is required and no action can be taken, however, the Governing Board 

may add the item to the agenda of a future meeting. 

 

 

3. Announcements 

 

 

4. Approval of the Agenda  

 

 

5. Consent Agenda 

Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and will be considered for adoption by one 

motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Governing 

Board, member of the audience, or staff requests that the Governing Board remove an item. If an 

item is removed, it will be discussed in the order in which it appears on the Agenda. 

 

a. Approval of the Minutes from the July 29, 2015, Regular Meeting – Pg. 1 

b. Operations Division Report  - Pg. 3 

c. Current Year Budget Status Update – Pg. 5  

d. Alcohol & Drug Policy – Pg. 6  

e. Superior Courts CLETS Connection  - Pg. 7 

    

 

6. FY13/14 External Audit Presentation by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP, Scott Brunner, CPA 

a. FY14 Fiscal Audit Report  - Pg. 8 

 

 

7. CalPERS Side Fund Analysis  

a. Government Financial Strategies Inc., Findings and Recommendation – Pg. 9 

 

 



 

 

8. FY16 Budget Package 

a. FY15/16 Proposed Capital Investment Plan (CIP) – Pg. 11 

b. FY15/16 Proposed Base Budget – Pg. 14 

c. Financial Policy Concept - General Reserve  - Pg. 17 

      
9. Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting October 7, 2015 

 

 

10. Items for Future Agenda  

 

 

11. Adjournment 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was available for public review and posted 

on/or before August 28, 2015 on the bulletin board outside of the Yolo County Board of Supervisors 

Chambers, Erwin Meier Administration Center, 625 Court St., Woodland, California and on the agency 

website: http://www.yeca911.org/BoardCalendar2015.html 

 

        
   

              

**The meeting room is wheelchair accessible and disabled parking is available.  If you are a person 

with a disability and you need disability related accommodations to attend the meeting, please contact 

Marci Criste at (530) 666-8919 or (530) 666-8909 (fax).  Requests for accommodations must be made 

at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. ** 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.yeca911.org/BoardCalendar2015.html


 

1 

 

Agenda Item:  5.a  

 

YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 
 GOVERNING BOARD 

July 29, 2015 

MINUTES 

The YECA Governing Board met on Wednesday, 29, 2015 at the Yolo Emergency Communications 

Agency, Woodland CA.  Board Chair Sergio Gutierrez called the meeting to order at 2:04 p.m. 

PRESENT: Primary Board Members: Sergio Gutierrez, City of Winters, Tom Lopez, Yolo County, 

 Dan Bellini, City of Woodland, Tom McDonald, City of West Sacramento, Gary 

Fredericksen, Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation, and Dena Humphrey, Executive Director. 

Entry No. 2 

Public Comment 

None 

Entry No. 3 

Announcements 

Board Chair Sergio Gutierrez congratulated Dispatch Assistant Maria Roa on a successful EMD 

delivery of a healthy baby girl in Winters.  Board Member Gary Fredericksen commended Dispatch on 

the great job they did with the strike teams and handling all the requests last Wednesday night.  

Entry No. 4 

Minute Order No. 2015-10:  Approval of Agenda 

The Agenda was approved as presented. 

MOTION: Bellini SECOND: Fredericksen AYES: Bellini, Gutierrez, Fredericksen, Lopez, McDonald. 

Entry No. 5 

Minute Order No. 2015-11:  Approval of Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda was approved as presented. 

MOTION: Lopez SECOND: Bellini AYES: Gutierrez, Bellini, Fredericksen, Lopez, McDonald. 

Entry No. 6 

Minute Order No. 2015-12:  Unfinished Business  

Executive Director Dena Humphrey brought back to the Board the expiring YEMSA contract with 

CALSTAR for Air Ambulance Dispatching services.  Two options were presented and after some 

discussion the Board approved the new YEMSA contract as is and that YECA would assume the 

dispatch duties for the member agencies served by YECA.  

MOTION: Lopez SECOND: Fredricksen AYES: Gutierrez, Bellini, Fredericksen, Lopez, McDonald. 

 



 

2 

 

Entry No. 7 

Minute Order No. 2015-13:  New MOU with YCDA and Non-Represented Compensation                   

Packages 

Executive Director Dena Humphrey summarized for the Board the major changes in both the YCDA 

MOU and the non-represented compensation packages.  A motion was made to approve the three year 

MOU with the Yolo County Dispatchers’ Association and the compensation packages for the non-

represented employees.  

MOTION: Lopez SECOND: Bellini AYES: Gutierrez, Bellini, Fredericksen, Lopez, McDonald. 

Entry No. 8 

Minute Order No. 2015-14:  Governing Board Elections 

For FY 2015/2016, member Tom Lopez was elected Chair and member Tom McDonald was elected 

Vice-Chair.  

MOTION: Fredericksen SECOND: Bellini AYES: Gutierrez, Bellini, Fredericksen, Lopez, McDonald. 

The next scheduled meeting will be September 2, 2015.   

Meeting was adjourned at 2:25 p.m. 

Minutes submitted by:  Marci Criste, Recording Secretary  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item:  5.b  

Date:  August 25, 2015 

To:  YECA Governing Board 

Thru:  Dena Humphrey, Executive Director  

From:  Karen Avara, Operations Manager  

Subject: Operations Division Report 

Recommendation:  No action required; information only. 

Summary:  Operations staff is currently engaged in the following: 

 Grants: 

YECA will be submitting a request for Homeland Security Grant in the amount of $118,000 to 

replace the Uninterrupted Power Supply (UPS) that supports our 9-1-1 system and Motorola 

radio consoles.  

 

 Staffing: 

Interviews were conducted on August 17th and 21st, and we will continue to accept applications 

until our vacant positions are filled. 

 

 Internal Affairs: June-July 2015 

1. Grievances: None 

2. Complaints: None 

3. Commendations: None 

 

 Monthly Gold Board Employee Recognition: 

August 2015: 

We celebrated many thanks and recognition for doing a great job in July.   

Chris Brewer was selected as the July 2015 raffle winner, a citizen submitted an email 

commending Chris for excellent customer service. Congratulations Chris.  

  

Others recognized for their contributions in July: 

Kim Lindsay, Amanda Garrison, Tammy Lancaster, Laura Swink, Diana Wilson, Vanesa Hoyt, 

Maria Roa, Mayra Berumen-Perez, Kristen Root, Molly Scott, Scott Roberson, Kim Maynard, 

and Tammy Leggins.  

 

Thank you all for doing a great job.  

Statistical Information: 

 Monthly Phone Statistics:  

Month  9-1-1   Non-Emergency Outgoing Total 

 July   6,324  17,615   7,160  31,099 

   

 Monthly CAD Events: 



 

4 

 

Included in “Other” category are AMR, Animal Control, All Public Works, County 

Maintenance, Social Services, Environmental Health, and Public Guardian.  

Month  Law  Fire  Other 

July  15,299  2,092  932 

  

 Confidential Records Requests: 

Month  # of Requests 

July  151 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

5 

 

YECA BUDGET MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

2015 / 2016    As of 8/27/15

   8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%
Line item JUL-15 AUG-15 SEPT-15 OCT-15 NOV-15 DEC-15 JAN-16 FEB-16 MAR-16 APR-16 MAY-16 JUN-16

360 360-1 ADMINISTRATION

Appropriations -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             

Expenditures 36,855$         130,248$       -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             

  

360 360-2 OPERATIONS - DISPATCH

Appropriations -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             

Expenditures 235,299$       464,253$       -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             

TOTAL for all budget units - B/U 360-1 Administration; 360-2 Operations Dispatch; 

Appropriations -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             

Expenditures 272,155$      594,501$      -$                 -$                -$                 -$               -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                -$             

360 360-3 RAD RADIO PROJECT  
Appropriations         54,120$         54,120$         -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             
Expenditures -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             

Unencumbered 54,120$         54,120$         -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             

Percent Expended 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Estimated Revenue    54,120$         54,120$         -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             
Realized Revenue -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             

Unrealized Revenue 54,120$         54,120$         -$                  -$                 -$                  -$               -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$             

Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

 

BofA Capital Lease

 

Agenda Item:  5.c  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

6 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

Agenda Item:  5.d  

Date:  September 2, 2015  

To:  YECA Governing Board 

From:   Dena Humphrey, Executive Director   

Subject:          YECA Alcohol & Drug Policy  

Recommendation: Approve Proposed YECA Alcohol & Drug Policy  

Summary:   

The proposed Drug & Alcohol policy is being submitted to the Board for approval.  Currently YECA 

has no comprehensive policy that addresses this subject in a personnel policy.  The origination of this 

policy derived from Yolo County.  YECA worked through County Counsel and the YCDA 

association through the meet and confer process with the proposed policy.  In addition, the policy 

requires Supervisors and above to have “Reasonable Suspicion” training, which will be coordinated 

using YCPARMIA resources.   

 

 

 

CLICK FOR ATTACHMENT 

YECA Alcohol and Drug Abuse Policy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

7 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Agenda Item: 5.e  

Date:  September 2, 2015 

To:  YECA Governing Board 

Thru:  Dena Humphrey, Executive Director 

From:  Mike Bowler, IT Manager 

Subject: CLETS access for Yolo Superior Court 

Recommendation: Delegate Signing Authority to the Executive Director for an MOU with the Yolo 

County Superior Courts  

 

Summary:    

The Yolo County Superior Court currently accesses the DOJ CLETS system through a program that 

will be discontinued in the end of September 2015. Searching for an alternative access point, the 

Court contacted the Yolo County Sheriff’s Office (YSO) seeking permission to use the YSO CLETS 

connection. 

 

Since YECA houses and manages the YSO CLETS connection on behalf of the YSO, the Court has 

asked permission to access CLETS via the connection managed by YECA. 

 

The DOJ has given the Court approval for this arrangement. 

 

YECA is able to provide the Court with access to CLETS using the Omnixx CLETS program that 

YECA hosts. The Omnixx program is used by each of the Records departments of the YECA member 

agencies. YECA hosted Omnixx is also used by the City of Davis, though Davis will be discontinuing 

using the program in the near future. 

 

YECA staff respectfully requests that the JPA Board authorize YECA to negotiate an MOU with the 

Court for CLETS access. The MOU would contain a cost-recovery provision to allow YECA to 

recover from the Court both one-time and recurring costs for the service of providing CLETS access. 

YECA would model the MOU and cost recovery after the MOU currently in place with the City of 

Davis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8 

 

 

Agenda Item:  6  

FY13/14 External Audit Presentation by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP, Scott Brunner, CPA 

 

CLICK FOR ATTACHMENT 

FY14 Fiscal Audit Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

9 

 

Agenda Item:  7  

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:       Dena Humphrey 

From:    Jonathan Edwards 

Date:     May 26, 2015 
 
Re:        Research Regarding Viability of Issuing Pension Obligation Bonds to Refinance Unfunded 

Accrued Liability with CalPERS 
 

 
Dena, I'm writing to summarize our research  regarding the potential of issuing pension obligation bonds 
["POBs") to  refinance  the  Agency's side  fund  and/or  other  unfunded  accrued  liabilities [UAL)  with 
CalPERS. Currently, CalPERS charges the Agency 7.5% annual interest on the UAL. 

 
Side Fund 

 
Regarding the side fund, it used to be the case that investment returns on side fund monies deposited 
with CalPERS (including monies from refinancing the Side Fund UAL) were spread amongst all agencies 
in the risk-sharing pool, thus significantly decreasing any direct impact from investment gains/losses on 
any one member's account.   This is no longer the case for side funds.   Now, investment gains and 
losses are credited directly to each member, rather than spread, thus bringing into play the same risks 
from issuing POBs to refinance a side fund as exists from issuing POBs to refinance other UALs, as 
described below. 

 
Risks of POBs 

 
Based on our research,  there  are numerous risks and disadvantages associated with POBs, including 
those discussed in the  Government Finance Officers Association's ["GFOA")  advisory on Evaluating the 
Use  of  Pension Obligation Bonds  (1997 and  2005)   and  more  recent   advisory regarding  pension 
obligation bonds (2015), both of which are enclosed.  Several notable risks are: 

 
•    Shortfall of CalPERS Investment Return v. Costs of Borrowing - funds deposited with 
CalPERS for investment by a member agency, including POB proceeds, are subject to CalPERS 
investment returns.   If these returns are less than CalPERS' target return, which is currently 
7.5%, then, essentially, the member agency owes the difference.  If the member also has a 
POB, then the member agency has to pay both the POB borrowing costs plus CalPERS. For  
example, if the POB borrowing  cost was 6.5%  and CalPERS earned 5%, then the member  
agency owes 6.5% on the POB + 2.5%  to CalPERS (7.5%  target- 5% actual return  =  2.5% 
shortfall) =  9% total, which is more than the 7.5% interest CalPERS would have charged on the 
unfunded liability. 

 
•    CalPERS  Decreasing  Target  Investment  Return  - If  CalPERS were  to  decrease  its  
targeted investment return  [currently  7.5%)  below the POB borrowing  cost, then the Agency  
would be financially worse off from having issued the POB. 

 
•    Overfunding - funds deposited with CalPERS for investment, including proceeds of POBs, are 
subject to CalPERS investment returns.   If CalPERS investment returns exceed CalPERS' target 
of 7.5%, then the member agency may end up being "overfunded".  CalPERS will not return the 
overfunded amount.    Further,  according  to  the  GFOA's advisory titled  Evaluating  the  Use  of 
Pension Obligation Bonds,  there  may be  ".  .  .  potential  pressures  for  additional  benefits  by 
government  employees  if  plans  are  fully  funded  and  the   government's   contribution   as  a 
percentage of payroll has declined relative to neighboring jurisdictions." 

 

1228 N Street, Suite 13, Sacramento, CA 95814-5609 

Telephone (916) 444-5100                   Fax (916) 444-5109 



 

10 

 

May 26, 2015 
Dena Humphrey 
Research Regarding Viability of Issuing Pension Obligation Bonds to Refinance   
Unfunded Accrued Liability with CaiPERS 
Page 2 
 

 
POB Analysis 

 
According to page 12  of the Agency's June 2013 actuarial report  (enclosed) and the UAL amortization 
schedule recently provided by CalPERS (enclosed], the Agency has several line item  UALs with various 
amortization  periods, with the majority  of the total combined UAL having an amortization period of 22 
years or longer.   We prepared the enclosed preliminary POB issuance refinancing analysis to provide a 
general indication of potential projected savings.   It can be see that based on the assumptions noted 
therein, the projected refinancing savings are approximately $54.000 in today's dollars, which equates 
to 2.57% of the balance refinanced.   Further, taking into account both the assumed interest rate and 
issuance costs, the true interest cost (which is the borrowing cost to be compared to CalPERS' target 
rate of 7.5%) is 7.03%. 

 
Prepaying Side Fund Liability from Cash on Hand 

 
Dena, you asked us to describe the amount the Agency would save if it repaid the Side Fund UAL from 
cash on-hand.   CalPERS  reports  that  the  remaining  Side Fund payments  for  fiscal years  2015-16 
through  2020-21 [six years) total $359,275 and that the amount required  to prepay the Side Fund on 
or about June 30,  2015, is $2B9,606.1     Further, I  understand from you that the Agency's cash on 
hand  is  earning  approximately 0.3%.     Prepaying from  cash  on-hand is  akin to refinancing without 
issuance  costs  and  at  the  interest  rate/investment return   being  earned  on  the  cash.    Assuming 
$289,606 borrowed for six years at 0.3%, the total annual payments would be $292,654, which is a 
savings of $66,620 compared the total Side Fund payments [$359,275).   Discounted at 0.3%, the 
total savings equates to $65,835 in today's dollars. · 

 
Finally, since the amount required to prepay the Side Fund ($289,606) is a relatively small portion of the 
total UAL ($2.47 million], the above-described risk of being overfunded would be relatively minimal. 

 
Conclusion 

 
Dena, based on the research and information summarized above, it appears that issuing POBs to repay 
the UAL would potentially garner relatively minimal projected savings and introduce numerous risks, 
including that the Agency could be financially worse off.   On the other hand, prepaying the Side Fund 
from cash on-hand would achieve significant projected savings with comparatively much less risk. 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions or comments. 

JSE/abm 

Enclosures 

•    Actuarial Report-June 2013 [from CalPERS) 

•    Amortization Schedule for Agency's Miscellaneous Plan (from CalPERS] 

•    Preliminary Analysis of Refinancing with Private Placement POB 

•     GFOA advisory on Evaluating the Use of Pension Obligation Bonds (1997 and 2005) 

•     GFOA advisory regarding Pension Obligation Bonds (2015) 

 
1   Based on information from CalPERS, prepayment between June 15 and June 30, 2015, requires first 
prepaying the payments due in 2016-17 onwards, and then prepaying the 2015-16 annual payment in 
early July. 

 

 



 

11 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Agenda Item:  8.a 

Date:  September 2, 2015  

To:  YECA Governing Board 

From:   Dena Humphrey, Executive Director   

Subject:          Proposed Capital Asset Plan (CIP)  

Summary:   

 

The proposed CIP is the initial draft to the Board to capture the future costs of capital assets for the next 

five years.  The plan is to identify when the asset is needed along with other potential funding streams 

that could help offset some of the costs to the member agencies through possible grants or State 

reimbursements.  Last fiscal year the Board approved CIP items in the budgeted amount 669k.   

 

FY14/15 Approved CIP Items:  

Last year the Board approved several Facility and Radio items for an approximate cost of $669k.  Some 

of these projects have been completed, while the remaining are planning to be completed over the next 

two months.  The following below is the status of those projects: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

The projects that were completed was approximately $627k, leaving $42k in projects not completed.  

Last year’s CIP scheduled the $55k budgeted amount for FY15/16 to address the “soil embankment 

erosion and exposed walls” around the building from the Nov 2013 Building Needs Assessment.  This 

leaves a remaining unfinished projected balance cost of $97k ($42k + $55k) for projects not completed 

on the Building needs Assessment.   

 

 

Project           Cost  Status  

Misleading Breakers  $    5,000  Completed  

Gold Elite Radio Consoles  $605,000  Completed  

Beam Repair  $    5,000  October 2015 

Retaining Wall  $  12,000  October 2015 

HVAC Deck  $  15,000  October 2015 

HVAC & Air System Equip  $  17,000  Completed  

HVAC (Equip Room)  $  10,000  October 2015 

TOTAL   $669,000    



 

12 

 

Board Approved Unfinished CIP Items in FY14/15 

 

1. Beam Repair     $  5,000     

2. Retaining Wall      $12,000 

3. HVAC Deck         $15,000 

4. HVAC (Equip Room) $10,000  

Total  $42,000 

 

Last Year’s Projected CIP for FY15/16  

5. Soil Embankment       $55,000  

                  Grand Total   $97,000 

              

 

Building:  

The HVAC construction to re-locate the newly purchased units is estimated at $100k.  The HVAC 

project would include addressing the soil embankment on the south and west side of the building, 

removing the metal deck, and back filling the retaining wall.  The difference between last years 

approved items for the HVAC project, beam work, and the soil embankments slated for this year is 

approximately $28k.   

 

The recommendation to the Board is to not address the soil embankment on the North and East side of 

the building estimated at $35k and to use that money towards hiring an architectural firm to design and 

project an estimated budget towards a remodel or new building.      

 

Radio/911Equipment: 

1. TSM 8000Server:  This server is the backbone to the microwave system and is at life cycle end 

and will no longer will be supported by Alcatel.   

 

2. Dispatch 911 Phones:  The current Plant/CML Vesta Pallas E9-1-1 phone system was installed in 

2010, and became eligible for replacement July 2015 from the State, anticipated installation date 

is October 2015.            

 

3. 9-1-1/Radio UPS: This equipment is the uninterrupted power supply (UPS) for both the 911 

telephone phone system and radio system.  The estimated current age is 20 years and is at end of 

life. 

 

4. 911 Voice Logger:  This equipment records all telephone and radio audio and is slated to be 

replaced with the new 911 Phone system.    

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project  

Priority 

Value  Funding Sources  

Replacement 

Cost (est.) FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 

Furniture                 

Dispatch Consoles   Member Agencies $85,000       $85,000   

                  

                  

Server Room                 

UPS   Member Agencies $35,000         $35,000 

SAN   Member Agencies $92,000     $92,000     

R720 Servers (2)   Member Agencies $34,000     $34,000     

R710 Servers (3)   Member Agencies $34,000   $34,000       

Core Switches (4)   Member Agencies $44,000     $44,000     

Core Switches (2)   Member Agencies $22,000         $22,000 

Offsite SAN (Disaster Recovery)   Member Agencies $92,000   $92,000       

                  

                  

Radio/911 Equipment Room                 

TSM 8000 Server - Microwave    Bond Money  $17,000 $17,000         

Dispatch 911 Phones (CPE)   State $318,000  $318,000          

911/Radio UPS    HSG  $115,000  $115,000          

911 Voice Logger (Server only)  I   State  $52,000 $52,000         

911 Voice Logger (Server only)  II   Member Agencies $55,000   $55,000       

                  

                  

Radio Sites                 

Bald Mtn Generator    HSG           $50,000 

                  

Building                  

Beam Work    Member Agencies  $25,000 $25,000         

HVAC & Soil Embankment    Member Agencies  $100,000 $100,000         

Totals     $1,120,000 $627,000 $181,000 $170,000 $85,000 $107,000 

                  

Total per Funding Source   Member Agencies    $125,000 $181,000 $170,000 $85,000 $57,000 

                  

    State    $370,000         

                  

    Grants    $115,000        $50,000 

         



 

14 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

Agenda Item:  8.b 

Date:  September 2, 2015  

To:  YECA Governing Board 

From:   Dena Humphrey, Executive Director  

Subject: Proposed Base Budget for FY 15/16 (Excludes CIP Costs)   

Summary:   

 

 

This year’s proposed base budget for FY15/16 captures the operational costs and current staffing for 41 

positions this year.  The proposed base budget is inclusive of all bargaining costs for the represented and 

non-represented.  However, the proposed base budget is not inclusive of any costs identified below titled 

“Proposed Additional Costs.”  These additional costs are being presented to the Board for consideration 

with additional funds made available through a fund balance and remaining Bond money.      

 

 

The total base budget for FY15/16 is $7,082,621 the allocation portion to partners is $5,088,548 for 

operations.  This represents a $200k, or 4% cost increase to previous year’s allocation.  The cost increase 

is inclusive of bargaining and reflects increases from salaries (CalPERS, Merits, COLA’s, Health, etc.) 

$235k; including the two (2) new FTE Dispatch positions.  Whereas, the capital equipment account and 

capital lease was reduced by $35k.     

 

 

Each budget unit under fund 360 is broken down as follows: Administration 360-1 reflects overhead 

salaries, services, and supplies; Operations 360-2, reflects salaries, services, supplies; Grants 360-3, 

reflects all current projects funded by the equipment lease bond and grants.     

 

 

The agency allocations shown on the table below reflects the allocated operational & overhead costs 

along with the scheduled capital lease payments.  The allocated operational & overhead cost is a 

reflection of operational costs minus capital lease, contracts, rebates, and based off the 2014 Annual Calls 

for Service Usage Report.  This year’s allocation rates for the member agencies was calculated at W. Sac 

38%, Woodland 34%, Yolo County 23%, Winters 5%, and Yocha Dehe 1% of the operating budget that 

was presented to the Board Jan 22, 2015.. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

15 

 

Proposed Base Budget for FY15/16  
Budgets: 360-1 Administration & 360-2 Operations  

Total Salaries & Benefits $4,005,254 

Total Service & Supplies $1,245,026 

Total Other Charges $   409,563 

Capital Equipment & Contingency $1,350,000 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $7,009,843 

 

Total Member Contribution  $5,088,548 

Total Capital Lease Payments  $   403,063 

Total Other   $1,518,232     

TOTAL REVENUE  $7,009,843 

 

 

Budget: 360-3 Grants  

Total Services & Supplies    $    72,778 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $    72,778 

 

Capital Lease & HSG FY13/14   $     72,778 

TOTAL REVENUE   $     72,778 

 

Total Appropriation Budget 360-1 & 360-2 $7,009,843   

Total Appropriation Budget 360-3 $     72,778 

JPA GROSS TOTAL   $7,082,621 

 

 
Member Agency Allocations: 

FY 15-16 Base Budget  

Agency Totals (Operations & Capital) FY 15-16 

Yocha Dehe Cost - Operations $51,737 

Yocha Dehe - Capital  $8,626 

Total  $60,363 

    

Yolo County Cost - Operations $1,167,831 

Yolo County - Capital   $143,992 

Total  $1,311,823 

    

West Sac Cost - Operations $1,933,695 

West Sac - Capital $55,515 

Total  $1,989,210 

    

Woodland Cost - Operations  $1,724,840 

Woodland - Capital  $97,149 

Total  $1,821,989 

    

Winters Cost - Operations $259,144 

Winters - Capital $22,014 

Total  $281,158 



 

16 

 

 

FY15/16 Proposed Additional Costs 
 

 

 FY15/16 Proposed Expenses and Contingency   
$240,000   CalPERS Payoff   
$125,000   CIP HVAC, South & West Soil Embankments, and Beam Work  
$100,000   Contingency    
$  75,000   Architectural Design & Projected Costs for Remodel 
$  50,000   Payout Retirement  
$ 590,000  Total  
  

 

 Available Funds    
                  $1,350,000  Fund Balance 
  $ - 590,000  {Less Proposed FY15/16 Expenses}  

$   760,000  Proposed Ending Fund Balance   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Restricted $130K Bond Money for Radio or CAD  
$92,000    Actatel Microwave System 10yr Warranty  
$17,000    Microwave Server 
$16,000    Mapping GIS Mobile upgrade  
$  5,000    Training on CAD upgrade  
$130,000  Sub-total    
$ -80,000  {Less amount included in Base Budget for 360-1}    
$  50,000  Total for Budget Unit 360-3 Grants  

 



 

17 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Agenda Item: 8.c   

Date:  September 2, 2015  

To:  YECA Governing Board 

From:   Dena Humphrey, Executive Director  

Subject: Financial Policy Concept – General Reserve   

Recommendation:  Consideration & Discussion  

Summary:   

The concept of setting a general reserve is being presented to the JPA Board for consideration.  

Currently YECA does not have a financial policy that sets a general reserve amount or gives 

direction towards funding future capital projects.  There are certain rules that fall under the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) that would need to be researched and 

presented to the Board for clarification and restrictions.   

The purpose of this item is to gather discussion and to have a clear understanding of the Board’s 

vision towards setting a solid fiscal policy for agency stability and continued operations during 

uncertain times.  The other planning component for consideration includes allotting funding 

towards future capital projects.  The proposed recommendations to the Board is to look at several 

priorities in setting a fiscal strategy to optimize the financial strength of the agency: 

1. Setting a general reserve amount  

2. Maintaining a yearly contingency amount for equipment or building failures – proposed 

$100k 

3. Designating funds towards future CIP items  

4. Paying down the CalPERS side funds  

5. Exploring investment opportunities  

The current operating budget is approximately $5M.  A general reserve of 15%-20% of the 

operating budget would be $750k to $1M.   Below are proposed priorities for the Board to 

consider when yearend surplus money is available and how to use the surplus as a re-investment: 

Setting Financial Priorities for Yearend Balances 

Priority 1:  Replenish anything under the general reserve amount set by the Board 

Priority 2:  Replenish Equipment Contingency Fund anything under $100k  

Priority 3:  Any residual or designated amount deposited into a Capital Fund for future CIP  

Priority 4:  Any designated dollar amount to pay down CalPERS Side Funds 
 

The purpose of this concept item is to receive feedback from the Board. Through consideration, 

then to research GASB and compile an actual policy to bring back to the Board for final approval 

encompassing the Board’s vision.   





1 
 


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 


ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE POLICY 


 


Section 1. Policy Purpose 


 


The purpose of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA) Alcohol and Drug Abuse 


Policy is to provide a uniform process for addressing alcohol and drug abuse problems in the 


workplace. The policy and testing procedures established to carry out the provisions of this policy 


are designed to ensure a drug-free workplace, provide an employee the opportunity for 


rehabilitation if reasonably possible and appropriate under the circumstances, and to outline the 


responsibilities of YECA managers and employees. Of primary concern to YECA is that its 


employees and applicants for employment are in a condition to perform their duties safely, 


effectively, and efficiently in the interest of their fellow workers, themselves, and members of the 


public. The presence of drugs and alcohol on the job, and the influence of these substances on 


employees during working hours, are inconsistent with this objective. YECA will not discriminate 


against rehabilitated employees and applicants because of a past history of drug and/or alcohol 


abuse. 


 


Section 2. Policy Statement 


 


1. It is the policy of YECA to maintain a safe work environment conducive to effective YECA 


government operations. All personnel, equipment, and operating practices are required to 


be consistent with the highest standards of health and safety. The presence of illegal drugs, 


non-prescribed drugs, or the improper use of prescribed drugs in the workplace, and the 


influence of these substances on employees during working hours is inconsistent with 


effective government. As a public employer, YECA is entrusted with the health and safety 


of its citizens, and the efficient operation of its public services. 


 


2. YECA policy requires that all employees shall not: 


 


a. Be under the influence or have in their system any amount of alcohol that could 


impair their ability to perform the duties of the position while on the job or while 


assigned standby duty. Any amount of alcohol is considered positive for purposes 


of this Policy. 


 


b. Be under the influence or have in their system an illegal, non-prescribed drug, or 


any drug that the employee knows or reasonably should know impairs his/her 


ability to perform the duties of the position while on the job or while assigned 


standby duty.   Levels considered positive for drugs are outlined in Section 9 of this 


Policy. 


 


c. Consume alcohol, unlawfully use drugs, or possess illegal drugs while on YECA 


property, while on duty, or assigned standby duty. 



mcriste

Typewritten Text

Back to packet







2 
 


 


d. Sell or unlawfully provide drugs or alcohol to any other person while such 


employee is on duty. 


 


3. YECA policy requires that all employees shall: 


 


a. Notify their supervisor and/or manager when taking medications which the 


employee knows will impact their work performance or ability to safely perform 


their assigned job duties. 


 


Section 3. Definitions 


 


1. Alcohol 


 


Alcohol means the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol or other low 


molecular weight alcohol including methyl or isopropyl alcohol. 


 


2. Designated Employer Representative (DER) 


  


 Designated Employer Representative (DER) shall mean Human Resources or designee. 


 


3. Employee 


 


Employee means any person who is performing duties or service to YECA or on YECA's 


behalf for any number of hours on any day of the week at any time. This includes, but is 


not limited to, all employees including supervisors, management, part-time employees, or 


interns. 


 


4. Illegal Drug 


 


Illegal drug means any controlled substance that is not legally obtained under State or 


Federal law, or a prescription drug obtained or used without the benefit of a prescription 


validly given to the employee or job applicant by a licensed physician.  


 


5. Positive Test  


 


Positive test shall mean to have the presence of a drug or a drug metabolite and/or alcohol 


in a person's system that is equal to or greater than the levels allowed by this Policy in the 


confirmation test as determined by appropriate testing of breath, urine or blood specimen 


and which is determined by the medical review officer to be the result of the use of drugs 


and/or alcohol. 


 


  







3 
 


6.   Prescription Drug 


 


Prescription drug means any substance that can be lawfully obtained or possessed pursuant 


to a prescription validly given by a licensed physician. 


 


7. Reasonable Suspicion 


 


Reasonable suspicion means a suspicion, based on objective facts and reasonable inference 


drawn from those facts sufficient to lead a prudent manager, supervisor, or co-worker to 


suspect that a YECA employee is under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol so that the 


employee's ability to perform the functions of the job is impaired, or so that the employee's 


ability to perform the job in a safe manner is reduced. Such facts may include 


characteristics of the employee's appearance, behavior, mannerisms, speech or body odors. 


Examples include, but are not limited to: 


 


a. Observable phenomena, such as direct observation of drug or alcohol use, or 


possession, and/or the physical symptoms of being under the influence of a drug or 


alcohol; 


b.  Inability to perform work properly; 


c.  Behavior creating a safety hazard; 


d.  Difficulties walking or standing, unsteady walking and movement, disorientation, 


loss of balance, problems with dexterity, or other physical activity impairment; 


e.  Impaired ability to speak, such as incoherent, slurred or thick speech; 


f.  Odor of alcohol on the breath; 


g.  Inability to appropriately respond to questions the employee should reasonably be 


capable of answering; 


h.  Physical symptoms of alcohol or drug influence, such as red and watery eyes; 


i.  Abnormal, belligerent, erratic, paranoid, violent or bizarre behavior; 


j.  Unexplained drowsiness; 


k.  Excessive unauthorized absenteeism; 


l.  Any conduct that constitutes a significant change from the individual's usual 


behavior, or that indicates impairment of sound judgment; 


m.  Arrest or conviction for a drug-related offense or the identification of an employee 


as the focus of a criminal investigation into illegal drug possession, use, distribution 


or trafficking. 


 


Reasonable suspicion shall exist when two (2) supervisors, managers, law enforcement peace 


officers, or any combination thereof, can articulate and substantiate behavioral, performance, or 


contemporaneous physical indicators of being under the influence of drugs or alcohol on the job 


or while assigned standby duty. The objective indicators should be recognized and accepted 


symptoms of intoxication or impairment caused by drugs or alcohol and should be indicators not 


reasonably explained as resulting from causes other than the use of such substances. Cause is not 


reasonable, and thus not a basis for testing if it is based solely on the observation and reports of an 







4 
 


anonymous third party. Although reasonable suspicion does not require certainty, mere "hunches" 


are not sufficient to meet this standard. 


 


8. Subject to Call or Standby Duty 


 


Subject to call or standby duty shall be defined and controlled by an employee’s applicable 


Memorandum of Understanding, if any. In most instances it will refer to an employee who 


is on assigned standby duty, which requires that the employee refrain from activities that 


might impair that person's ability to perform assigned duties. An employee who is not 


assigned to standby duty and is called back to work shall have the right and be required to 


communicate to management his/her inability to perform job duties. 


 


9. YECA Equipment 


 


YECA equipment shall mean all property and equipment, machinery and vehicles owned, 


leased, rented or used by YECA. 


 


Section 4. Application of Policy 


 


1. Scope 


 


This Policy applies to employees and applicants for positions with YECA. In keeping with 


its obligation to maintain a healthy, safe, and efficient work force, YECA will require that 


final candidates being considered for employment with YECA undergo and pass a drug 


and alcohol screening procedure as a condition of employment. 


 


2. Compliance 


 


Compliance with this Policy is a condition of continued employment. Refusal of any 


applicant or employee to submit to testing, or attempt to adulterate or evade the testing 


process, will be viewed as insubordination and will subject the person to disqualification  


from employment or disciplinary action, up to and including termination. Employees who 


are reasonably suspected of being under the influence of alcohol or drugs shall be prevented 


from engaging in further work and may be detained for a reasonable time until able to 


safely be transported from the work site.  


 


3. Medication Reporting Requirements 


 


 


The use of prescribed medications and drugs in compliance with physician instructions is 


not a violation of this Policy unless such use causes impairment. In the event there is a 


question regarding an employee's ability to safely and effectively perform assigned duties 







5 
 


while using such medication or drugs, clearance from a qualified physician may be required 


by YECA management. 


 


If while using physician prescribed medications at work, the employee becomes aware of 


any side effects that do or may impact his/her work performance and/or his/her ability to 


safely perform his/her job duties, the employee must immediately notify his/her immediate 


supervisor and/or manager of such impairment. The employee shall not be required to 


disclose their medications to YECA management. 


 


4. Reporting 


 


Any employee who reasonably suspects that another YECA employee is under the 


influence of alcohol or drugs during work hours shall immediately notify a supervisor or 


manager of the employee’s suspicions. If an employee finds drugs or is exposed to drugs 


in the work place, the employee shall immediately report this to a supervisor. 


 


If there is no supervisor on duty, the Executive Director or designee shall be notified at 


home or via his/her cell phone. 


 


Section 5. Employee Assistance Program 


 


YECA has established a voluntary Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to assist those employees 


who may choose to voluntarily seek help for drug and/or alcohol problems. YECA is strongly 


committed to encouraging its employees to voluntarily and confidentially seek assistance from 


EAP or any other program designed to assist them in overcoming drug and/or alcohol abuse. 


However, YECA will be firm in dealing with and disciplining those employees who are substance 


abusers, and whose substance abuse adversely affects their work performance, job safety, or the 


public's interest. The EAP will be administered separately from the testing program, and shall be 


available to all employees without regard to a finding of drug use. 


 


Section 6. Management Responsibilities and Guidelines 


 


1. Managers and supervisors are responsible for reasonably enforcing the provisions of this 


Policy. 


 


2. Managers and supervisors may order that an employee submit to a drug and/or alcohol test 


when a manager or supervisor has a reasonable suspicion that an employee is under the 


influence of drugs or alcohol while on the job or assigned standby duty. Two (2) 


supervisors, managers, law enforcement peace officers, or any combination thereof, based 


on independent observations, must concur in the determination that reasonable suspicion 


exists.  


 







6 
 


3. If two (2) supervisors, managers, law enforcement peace officers, or any combination 


thereof make an observation of an employee that leads them to believe it may constitute 


reasonable cause for drug or alcohol testing, the manager or supervisor will notify the 


employee of the suspicion, and inform the employee that he/she may have an employee 


representative (i.e., Association representative or a co-worker of the employee's choosing) 


present during the discussion and testing stage, provided that such employee representation 


can be provided within thirty (30) minutes from the time of employee notification. The 


employee will be offered an opportunity to give an explanation of his/her condition. 


 


4. Any manager or supervisor requesting that an employee submit to a drug and/or alcohol 


test must document in writing the facts and observations that led him/her to reasonably 


suspect that the employee in question was under the influence of drugs or alcohol. These 


facts and observations are to be shared with the employee at the time of the directive to 


submit to a drug and/or alcohol test and shall be submitted to the Executive Director within 


two (2) working days from the date of the request. A copy will be sent to Human Resources 


and the employee at the same time. 


 


5. Managers and supervisors may search YECA property when there is reasonable suspicion 


to believe that unauthorized drugs and/or alcohol are present. Such searches shall be 


conducted only with the knowledge and concurrence of the Executive Director or his/her 


designee in the presence of the employee and an employee representative, if requested by 


the employee. If the employee cannot be present at the time when YECA intended to 


conduct the search, then YECA will secure the YECA-issued locker and provide 


reasonable notice, of no less than one (1) day, to the employee of the date and time when 


the locker will be opened.  If the employee fails to appear after being given such notice, 


then YECA can proceed to open the locker even in the absence of the employee. If a 


supervisor or manager desires, they may request assistance from the appropriate law 


enforcement agency in any searches. 


 


6. Any manager or supervisor who directs or conducts a search of YECA property and the 


contents therein must document in writing, within two (2) work days of the search, the 


reasons that led him/her to reasonably suspect the presence of unauthorized drugs and/or 


alcohol. An employee’s personal property (e.g., purse, backpack) shall not be searched 


without the employee’s consent or a warrant. A copy shall be provided to the Executive 


Director, Human Resources, and the employee.  


 


7. The Executive Director or designee shall notify the appropriate law enforcement agency if 


illegal drugs are found on YECA property. 


 


Section 7. Management and Supervisory Training 


 


Managers and supervisors have a key role in establishing and monitoring a drug-free workplace. 


To the extent that is reasonably possible, YECA will provide training to assist supervisors and 







7 
 


managers in recognizing and addressing drug or alcohol use by employees. All new supervisors 


will be provided training. The purpose of this training is to promote understanding of YECA 


policies relevant to work performance problems, drug and alcohol misuse in the work place, the 


circumstances under which searches can be conducted, the services provided through EAP, YECA 


procedures for referring employees to EAP, how employee performance and behavioral changes 


should be recognized and documented, skills in confronting employees with possible problems, 


and the proper disciplinary approach in dealing with drug and alcohol abuse problems. 


 


Section 8. Drug and Alcohol Testing Procedure 


 


1. Generally 


 


The alcohol and drug test may test for any legal or illegal substance, which could impair 


an employee's ability to effectively and safely perform the functions of the job. These 


include, but are not limited to, marijuana metabolites, cocaine metabolites, opiate 


metabolites, phencyclidine (PCP), amphetamines and ethyl alcohol. Testing will only be 


done by a laboratory that has been duly certified by the State of California. 


 


2. Application 


 


Drug and alcohol tests may be administered under the following circumstances: 


 


a. All new hires will be required to undergo a pre-employment drug and alcohol 


screening examination as a condition of employment with YECA; 


 


b. As a condition of being promoted into selected safety and security sensitive 


positions which require testing; 


 


c. When an employee shows signs of impairment on the job and there is reasonable 


suspicion to believe it is drug or alcohol related; 


 


d. After any accident when there is reasonable suspicion to believe it is drug or alcohol 


related; and 


 


e. As a condition of a drug or alcohol free trial period, which has been agreed to by 


the employee and YECA or in accordance with the provisions of a drug 


rehabilitation program after an individual has tested positive for drug or alcohol 


abuse. 


 


3.  Pre-Employment Testing Procedure for Applicants 


 


a. Every recruitment announcement for YECA vacancies will include a statement of 


YECA's drug and alcohol testing policy for applicants. In addition, each final 







8 
 


applicant will be notified that appointment to the position will be contingent upon 


a negative drug and alcohol test result. 


 


b. All potential new hires will be required to undergo and pass a drug and alcohol test 


as a condition of employment with YECA. 


 


c. The drug and alcohol test will be scheduled by Human Resources. Urine specimens 


shall be collected in a respectful manner by medical staff. 


 


d. Pre-employment applicants must complete consent and waiver forms before they 


are tested. 


 


e. Urine specimens (or blood specimens if required for the position) will be collected 


in one tamper-resistant container. The sample will be immediately sealed in the 


presence of the applicant, then initialed by the employee and forwarded to the 


laboratory for drug and alcohol testing. Before conducting the test, the laboratory 


will separate the collected sample into two separate containers. One of the two 


samples will be sealed and retained by the laboratory in the event a second test will 


be needed.  


 


f. After conducting the test, the laboratory will notify the Designated Employer 


Representative (DER) of the examination results. 


 


g. An applicant who has tested positive for drugs will be contacted by the DER. A 


private and confidential meeting will be held with the applicant in which he/she 


will be informed of the exam results and will be given the opportunity to respond. 


The opportunity to have a second confirming test will be provided to those that 


request such an examination. The results of the second test will be controlling. 


 


h. If the drug test is positive at the pre-employment stage, the applicant must provide 


to Human Resources, within three (3) days of request: 


1. A valid prescription; 


2. Verification from the individual's physician for a valid prescription; and/or 


3. A written documented explanation of the positive test. 


 


Human Resources will evaluate the submitted information and determine if the 


explanation satisfactorily negates the positive drug test. 


 


i. Failure by an applicant to pass the drug and alcohol test, including Human 


Resource's review of the appeal documentation, or to provide the requested 


prescription verification will result in the individual not being hired. 


 







9 
 


j. Applicants who test positive for a drug test and are rejected from employment may 


reapply after 6 months but will be subjected to the same qualifying requirements 


for YECA employment. 


 


4. Testing of Employees Based on Reasonable Suspicion 


 


a. An employee who is suspected of being under the influence of alcohol or drugs in 


the workplace, or while subject to being called back to duty, may be required to 


undergo an alcohol and drug test if the decision is based on a reasonable suspicion 


of two (2) supervisors, managers, law enforcement peace officers, or any 


combination thereof.  If only one supervisor is on site at the time of the initial 


observation, another supervisor, manager or law enforcement peace officer should 


be called to report to the scene to make a second observation. An employee who 


admits to being under the influence of alcohol or drugs may still be required to 


submit to an alcohol and/or drug test based on the circumstances and the opinion 


of the aforementioned supervisors.  


 


b. Two (2) supervisors, managers, law enforcement peace officers, or any 


combination thereof shall meet and notify the employee of their suspicion(s), and 


determine from that meeting if there is reasonable suspicion to believe that the 


employee may be under the influence of alcohol or a drug. The employee will be 


offered an opportunity to give an explanation of his/her condition. The employee 


shall be advised that she/he may have an employee representative (i.e., union 


representative or co-worker) present during the discussion and testing stage 


provided that such representation can be provided within thirty (30) minutes from 


time of employee notification. The employee will be given access to reasonable 


phone calls and assistance in trying to reach a representative. 


 


c. A manager or supervisor may direct that an employee submit to a drug and/or 


alcohol test.  Such a directive shall be in writing and be signed by the requesting 


manager or supervisor before the employee undergoes the test. Managers and 


supervisors are to use the Form entitled "Drug and Alcohol Testing Notice." Forms 


are available by contacting Human Resources. 


 


d. If there is reasonable suspicion that the employee is under the influence, the 


manager or supervisor will call Human Resources to schedule the necessary drug 


and/or alcohol test. If scheduling by Human Resources is not possible, or if the 


incident occurs during a holiday, a supervisor or manager may make alternate 


arrangements for the testing to be performed by qualified medical staff. A listing of 


available specimen collection sites will be available from Human Resources. 


 


e. If an employee refuses to submit to a requested alcohol and/or drug test, the 


employee will be informed by the requesting manager or supervisor of YECA's 







10 
 


drug and alcohol testing requirements and the possibility of disciplinary action up 


to and including termination for refusing to take the test as directed.  A refusal to 


submit to an alcohol and/or drug test will be considered a positive test for purposes 


of this Policy. 


 


f. If an employee states that he/she is “unable” to give a specimen, the employee will 


remain at the collection site until a specimen is collected. The supervisor shall 


remain with the employee. 


 


g. An employee suspected of being under the influence will be driven to the testing 


laboratory for the necessary drug and/or alcohol test. YECA personnel will make 


every reasonable effort to prevent an employee who refuses to take this test from 


leaving YECA premises until the employee can be safely transported home. 


Supervisors and managers should transport the employee in teams of two. 


 


h. Any manager or supervisor requesting that an employee submit to a drug and/or 


alcohol test must document in writing the facts and observations that led him/her to 


reasonably suspect that the employee in question was under the influence of drugs 


or alcohol.  A "Reasonable Suspicion Evaluation Form for Supervisors" is preferred 


for this documentation and is available from Human Resources. Such 


documentation shall be submitted to the Executive Director within two (2) working 


days from the date of the request. A copy shall be sent to Human Resources and a 


copy provided to the employee. In addition, the employee shall be given a written 


letter directing the employee to submit to the drug and/or alcohol test prior to taking 


the employee for specimen collection. Samples of these letters are also available 


from Human Resources. 


 


i. While awaiting the results of a drug and/or alcohol test, the employee may be 


relieved of assigned job duties and placed on paid administrative leave, reassigned 


until the test results are available, or returned to duty depending on the Supervisor's 


assessment of the employee's ability to safely perform job functions. 


 


j. Urine specimens will be collected by the testing laboratory in one (1) container. 


The urine sample will be obtained directly in a tamper-resistant urine bottle, or in a 


wide-mouthed clinic specimen container, which shall remain in full view of the 


employee until transferred to, sealed, and initialed on a tamper-resistant urine 


bottle.  Immediately after the specimen is collected, the urine bottle shall, in the 


presence of the employee, be labeled and then initialed by the employee. The 


container shall be sent to the testing laboratory on that day or the earliest business 


day by the fastest available method. The same procedure shall be followed for a 


blood test. Before conducting the test, the laboratory will separate the collected 


sample into two (2) separate containers. One of the two samples will be sealed and 


retained by the laboratory in the event a second test is needed. 







11 
 


 


k. The results of the drug and/or alcohol test will be returned to Human Resources 


which will be responsible for informing the Executive Director, the appropriate 


manager, and the employee of the test results. An employee who has tested positive 


may request YECA to conduct a second test to confirm the test results. The results 


of the second test will be controlling. YECA will pay for all testing. 


 


l. Before imposing discipline an employee will be provided the opportunity to explain 


positive test result(s). If a drug test is positive, the employee must provide, within 


three (3) days of the request, a valid prescription, verification from the individual's 


physician for a valid prescription, and/or a written explanation of the positive test 


results. 


 


5. Employees Who Test Positive/Opportunity for Rehabilitation 


 


a. An employee who has tested positive to a drug and/or alcohol test will be 


considered for disciplinary action up to and including termination  


 


b. First-time offenders who test positive may be given the opportunity, at YECA's 


discretion, to participate in a rehabilitation program in conjunction with the 


disciplinary action. A written agreement to unannounced drug and/or alcohol 


testing shall be required to qualify for participation in such a rehabilitation program.  


 


c. Employees, who have tested positive on a drug and/or alcohol test while on the job 


or while on assigned standby duty, may be subjected to unannounced testing for a 


period of up to one (1) year. Such employees may be tested as stipulated in a written 


agreement between the employee and YECA containing the provisions for 


continued employment. An employee who tests positive for drugs or alcohol while 


participating in a written "last chance" agreement will be subject to termination. 


Nothing in this Section is intended to deprive an employee of due process or their 


statutory rights. 


 


d. Disciplinary action will not be taken against an employee who voluntarily admits 


having a problem with alcohol or drug abuse, provided that the admission occurs 


prior to a determination that the employee should be tested. Voluntary admission 


does not prohibit testing as stipulated in a written agreement between YECA and 


the employee. An employee who voluntarily admits having a problem with alcohol 


or drug abuse will be encouraged to attend the Employee Assistance Program for 


counseling or rehabilitation treatment. Such an employee may use accrued sick 


leave to attend a YECA approved rehabilitation program. Employees can utilize 


this provision for voluntary admission no more than once every three years. 


 


 







12 
 


Section 9. Drug Testing Levels 


 


All initial drug tests will be screened using an immunoassay technique and for alcohol an 


Evidential Breath Testing (EBT) device. All presumptive positive drug tests will be confirmed 


using gas chromatography/mass spectrometry (GC/MS) and all presumptive positive alcohol tests 


will be confirmed with a second EBT performed within 15 -30 minutes after the first EBT test is 


completed. YECA will test for cannabinoids (marijuana), cocaine, amphetamines, opiates, 


barbiturates, benzodiazepines, and phencyclidine (PCP) as well as alcohol.  Tests will seek only 


information about the presence of drugs and/or alcohol in an individual's system and will not test 


for any medical condition. The following are the cutoff concentrations for drug tests, which shall 


conform to U.S. Department of Health and Human Services as may be amended from time to time: 


 


Initial Test Analyte Initial Test 


Cutoff 


Confirmatory Test Analyte Confirmatory 


Test Cutoff 


Marijuana metabolites 50 ng/mL THCA1 15 ng/mL 


Cocaine metabolites 150 ng/mL Benzoylecgonine 100 ng/mL 


Opiate metabolites 


Codeine/Morphine2 


2000 ng/mL Morphine 2000 ng/mL 


  Codeine 2000 ng/mL 


6-Acetylmorphine (6-AM) 10 ng/mL 6-AM 10 ng/mL 


Phencyclidine 25 ng/mL Phencyclidine 25 ng/mL 


Amphetamines3 500 ng/mL Amphetamines:  


Amphetamine/Methamphetamine4  Amphetamine 250 ng/mL 


  Methamphetamine5 250 ng/mL 


MDMA6 500 ng/mL MDMA 250 ng/mL 


  MDA7 250 ng/mL 


  MDEA8 250 ng/mL 


1Delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol-9-carboxylic acid (THCA). 
2Morphine is the target analyte for codeine/morphine testing. 
3Either a single initial test kit or multiple initial test kits may be used provided the single kit detects 


each target analyte independently at the specified cutoff. 
4Methamphetamine is the target analyte for amphetamine/methamphetamine testing. 
5To be reported positive for methamphetamine, the specimen must also have an amphetamine 


concentration equal to or greater than 100 ng/mL. 
6Methylenedioxymethamphetamine. 







13 
 


7Methylenedioxyamphetamine.    
8Methylenedioxyethylamphetamine.  (“Appendix A – Specimen Reporting Criteria, Medical Review 


Officer Manual for Federal Agency Workplace Drug Testing Programs,” U.S. Department of Health and 


Human Services (May 2014)) 


 


These test levels are subject to change by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services as 


advances in technology or other considerations warrant identification of these substances at other 


concentrations.. 


 


Section 10. Confidentiality 


 


1. Laboratory reports or test results shall not appear in an employee's personnel file. 


Information of this nature will be contained in a separate confidential file that will be 


securely kept under the control of Human Resources and/or Executive Director. 


 


2. All information contained in an employee's or applicant's drug and/or alcohol test is 


confidential and will be disclosed only to the employee, applicant, Human Resources and 


Executive Director or his/her designee on a need-to-know basis. 


 


3. There will be one (1) person in Human Resources who will be designated to receive testing 


results. He/she will notify the Executive Director and/or his/her designee strictly on a need-


to-know basis. 


 


4. Every reasonable effort will be made to ensure that all employee substance abuse problems 


will be discussed in private and actions taken will not be made known to anyone other than 


those directly involved in taking the action or who are required to be involved in the 


disciplinary procedure.  


 


Section 11. Deviations from Policy 


 


Deviations from this Policy and its application shall be reported to the Executive Director or his/her 


designee for a final determination. 


 


Section 12. Miscellaneous 


 


1. Copies of this Policy shall be made available to all employees. 


 


2. All forms mentioned in this Policy are available from Human Resources. 


 












YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Independent Auditor’s Reports, 
Basic Financial Statements, and  


Required Supplementary Information 


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 



mcriste

Typewritten Text

Back to packet







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 
 


Table of Contents 
 


Page(s) 
 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report ................................................................................................................ 1-2 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 


Statement of Net Position – Governmental Activities ..................................................................... 3 
 
Statement of Activities – Governmental Activities ......................................................................... 4 
 
Balance Sheet – General Fund ......................................................................................................... 5 
 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position ............................................ 6 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in 
 Fund Balance – General Fund ...................................................................................................... 7 
 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
 Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities ............................................................... 8 
 


 Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ..................................................................................... 9-23 
 
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited): 
  
 Schedule of Funding Progress for Other  
  Postemployment Benefits Plan ................................................................................................... 24 
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund 
  Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund  ........................................................................... 25 
 
 Notes to the Required Supplementary Information ....................................................................... 26 
 
Other Report: 
 
 Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
   and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
   Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards ...................... 27-28 
 
Schedule of Current Year Findings ........................................................................................................ 29-31 
 
Status of Prior Year Findings ................................................................................................................. 32-33 
 







 


1 
 


 
Independent Auditor’s Report 


 
Board of Directors  
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the general 
fund of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise YECA’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  


Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities and the general fund of YECA, as of June 30, 
2014, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 


1







 


2 
 


Other Matters 


Required Supplementary Information 


Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of 
Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits Plan and the budgetary comparison information on 
pages 24 through 26 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context.  Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 


In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 1, 2015 
on our consideration of YECA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering YECA’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.  
 
 


 
Sacramento, California 
April 1, 2015 







 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 







ASSETS
Imprest cash 300$                    
Cash in County Treasury 1,584,393            
Due from other governments 95,183                 
Prepaid expense 242,968               
Restricted assets:


Cash with fiscal agent 699,392               
Capital assets:


Nondepreciable 3,330,217            
Depreciable, net 2,329,555            


Total Assets 8,282,008            


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 75,320                 
Accrued payroll 140,197               
Due to other governments 624                      
Accrued interest 24,520                 
Long-term liabilities:


Due within one year 305,280               
Due in more than one year 3,236,989            


Total Liabilities 3,782,930            


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,336,728            
Unrestricted 1,162,350            


Total Net Position 4,499,078$          


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities


June 30, 2014


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
3







PROGRAM EXPENSES
Public safety - 911 communications


Salaries and employee benefits 3,535,389$          
Services and supplies 429,629               
Depreciation 237,574               


Interest on long-term debt 204,674               
Total Program Expenses 4,407,266            


PROGRAM REVENUES
Operating grants and contributions 5,040,718            
Capital grants and contributions 115,298               


Total Program Revenues 5,156,016            


Net Expense 748,750               


GENERAL REVENUES
Interest earnings 3,126                   
Other 91,083                 


Total General Revenues 94,209                 


Change in Net Position 842,959               


Net Position - beginning of year, restated 3,656,119            


Net Position - end of year 4,499,078$          


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Activities
Governmental Activities


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
4







ASSETS
Imprest cash 300$                    
Cash in County Treasury 1,584,393            
Due from other governments 95,183                 
Prepaid items 242,968               
Restricted assets:


Cash with fiscal agent 699,392               
Total Assets 2,622,236$          


LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:


Accounts payable 75,320$               
Accrued payroll 140,197               
Due to other governments 624                      


Total Liabilities 216,141               


Fund Balance:
Nonspendable for prepaid items 242,968               
Restricted for capital projects 699,392               
Unassigned 1,463,735            


Total Fund Balance 2,406,095            


Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 2,622,236$          


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Balance Sheet
General Fund
June 30, 2014


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
5







Fund balance - General Fund 2,406,095$          


Amounts reported in the statement of net position are different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
 and, therefore, are not reported in the General Fund. 5,659,772            


Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
 therefore, are not reported in the General Fund.


Net OPEB obligation (342,835)              
Accrued interest (24,520)                
Capital lease (3,022,436)           
Compensated absences (176,998)              


Net position - Governmental Activities 4,499,078$          


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position


June 30, 2014


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
6







REVENUES
Intergovernmental:


Federal 91,590$               
State 23,708                 


Contributions 5,040,718            
Investment earnings 3,126                   
Other 91,083                 


Total Revenues 5,250,225            


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 3,445,802            
Services and supplies 1,223,295            


Debt service:
Principal 209,246               
Interest 206,371               


Capital outlay 37,500                 
Total Expenditures 5,122,214            


Change in Fund Balance 128,011               


Fund Balance - beginning of year 2,278,084            


Fund Balance - end of year 2,406,095$          


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Change in Fund Balance - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
7







Change in fund balance - General Fund 128,011$       


Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because:


The General Fund reports capital outlay as expenditures.  However,
 in the statement of activities, the cost of those items is allocated
 over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.


Capital outlay 831,166$       
Depreciation expense (237,574)        593,592         


Repayment of long-term liabilities are expenditures in the General
 Fund, but reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 209,246         


Other expenses in the statement of activities that do not use current
 financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the General
 Fund.


Change in compensated absences (23,508)          
Change in net OPEB obligation (66,079)          
Change in accrued interest 1,697             (87,890)          


Change in net position - Governmental Activities 842,959$       


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
8







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


9 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Reporting Entity 
 


The Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), formerly known as Yolo County 
Communications Emergency Service Agency, was established June 21, 1988 by Agreement No. 88-133, 
which is a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (Agreement) pursuant to Government Code 6500 et seq. 
 
YECA includes all operating activities considered to be a part of YECA.  YECA reviewed the criteria 
developed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its issuance of Statement No. 
14, which was amended by Statement No. 61, relating to the financial reporting entity to determine 
whether YECA is financially accountable for other entities.  YECA has determined that no other outside 
entity meets the above criteria, and therefore, no agency has been included as a component unit in 
YECA’s financial statements. 
 
The parties making up the Joint Powers Agency (JPA) are the County of Yolo and the Cities of 
Woodland, West Sacramento, and Winters.  The parties each appoint members to the governing board of 
YECA. 
 
YECA was created to provide mutual benefits, such as cost savings and greater operational efficiency, to 
the county and the cities through the sharing of communication facilities, emergency services, and 
increased management control. 
 
Each party retains the ownership of its radio frequencies, but allows the use of these frequencies by 
YECA. 
 
Under the Agreement, each party in YECA contributes to the budget of YECA.  These contributions are 
based on various formulas outlined in Section 9.2 of the JPA Agreement. 
 
Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
 


Government-Wide Statements 
 


The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the primary 
government (YECA).  These statements include the financial activities of the overall government. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
YECA's governmental activity.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function or segment.  Program revenues include grants and contributions, as well as contributions 
received from JPA members that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of 
YECA.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including investment income, are 
presented instead as general revenues. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


10 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Basis of Presentation and Accounting (Continued) 
 


Fund Financial Statements 
 


Separate financial statements are provided for the General Fund. YECA’s General Fund accounts for all 
of its financial resources and activities. The General Fund financial statements are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current 
period.  "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means 
collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current 
period.  YECA uses an availability period of 365 days for revenue recognition for its General Fund 
revenues. Those revenues susceptible to accrual include intergovernmental revenues, contributions, and 
investment income. 
 
Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
 
Nonexchange transactions, in which YECA gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or 
giving) value in exchange, include grants, entitlements, and donations.  On a modified accrual basis, 
revenues from nonexchange transactions are recognized when the underlying transactions take place and 
have met the 365-day availability criteria.  Revenues from grants, entitlements, and donations are 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Cash in County Treasury 
 


YECA maintains cash and investments with the Yolo County Treasurer (Treasurer) in a cash and 
investment pool.  On a quarterly basis, the Treasurer allocates interest to participants based upon their 
average daily balances.  Required disclosure information regarding the categorization of investments and 
other deposit and investment risk disclosures can be found in the County of Yolo's (County) 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The County’s financial statements may be obtained by 
contacting the County Auditor-Controller's office at 625 Court Street, Room 103, Woodland, California 
95776.  The Yolo County Treasury Oversight Committee oversees the Treasurer's investments and 
policies. 
 
YECA has no deposit or investment policy that addresses interest rate, credit, or custodial credit risk.  
Investments held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at amortized 
cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.   
 
 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


11 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 
 


Cash with fiscal agent represents proceeds from debt related to YECA’s capital lease financing 
arrangement with Bank of America. Refer to Note 4 for more information relating to the debt issuance. 
 
Due From Other Governments 
 


These amounts represent receivables from other governmental agencies.  Management believes its 
receivables to be fully collectible and, accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been 
established. 
 
Capital Assets 
 


Capital assets have been acquired for general operational purposes.  Assets purchased are recorded as 
expenditures in the General Fund and capitalized at cost or estimated cost where no historical records are 
available in the government-wide financial statements. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated 
fair market value on the date contributed. YECA defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Capital assets, including 
intangible assets, are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 
years in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 


Unused vacation leave and compensatory time off may be accumulated up to a specified maximum and is 
paid at the time employment with YECA is terminated.  YECA is not obligated to pay for unused sick 
leave if employment is terminated prior to retirement. 
 
The accumulated benefits will be liquidated in future years as employees elect to use them.  In the normal 
course of business, compensated absences do not require the use of current financial resources as all 
payments of these accumulated benefits will be funded from appropriations of the year in which they are 
to be paid; therefore, the total liability is recorded in the government-wide financial statements only.  In 
accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is 
recorded for nonvesting accumulated rights to receive sick pay benefits. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


12 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Fund Balance/Net Position 
 


Fund Balance 
 


The provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, established the following classification of fund balance: 
 


 Nonspendable Fund Balance – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 


 Restricted Fund Balance – amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 


 Committed Fund Balance – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action by the entity’s “highest level of decision-making authority", 
which YECA considers to be resolutions adopted by YECA’s Board of Directors.  


 Assigned Fund Balance – includes amounts of fund balance that reflect YECA's intended use of 
resources for specific purposes that are neither restricted nor committed.  


 Unassigned Fund Balance – includes resources in fund balance that cannot be classified into any 
of the other categories.  


 


YECA's spending priority is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned, and 
unassigned fund balance. 
 
Net Position 
 


Net position comprises the various net earnings from YECA’s revenues, expenses, and contributions of 
capital.  Net position is classified in the following three components: 
 


 Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of all capital assets, including restricted capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and any related outstanding debt attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvements of those assets. 


 Restricted Net Position – Restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
related to those assets. 


 Unrestricted Net Position – All other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"net investment in capital assets."  


 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is YECA's policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


13 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 


Members' Contributions 
 


Each member of YECA contributes annually based on YECA's budget.  Members' contributions are 
determined by various formulas set forth in the Joint Powers Agreement.  Contributions are payable in 
quarterly installments before the first day of each quarter. 
 
Estimates 
 


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS  
 
Deposits held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at amortized cost 
plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.  As of June 30, 2014, YECA's total cash in the 
County of Yolo Treasury was $1,584,393. 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2014, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as 
follows: 
 


Statement of Net Position
Cash in County Treasury 1,584,393$     
Imprest cash 300                 
Restricted assets - cash with fiscal agent 699,392          


Total Cash and Investments 2,284,085$     


 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code  
 


The table on the following page identifies the investment types that are authorized for YECA by the 
California Government Code.  The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government 
Code that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  This table does not 
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt 
agreements of the YECA, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


14 


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code (Continued) 
 


Authorized Investment Type
Maximum 
Maturity


Maximum 
Percentage of 


Portfolio*


Maximum 
Investment in 


One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years No limit No limit
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years No limit No limit
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years No limit No limit
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% No limit
Repurchase Agreements 1 year No limit No limit
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base value No limit
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% No limit
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% No limit
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A No limit No limit
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A No limit No limit
JPA Pools (other investment pools) N/A No limit No limit


*Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions.
 
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 


Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustee is governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather 
than the general provisions of the California Government Code.  The table below identifies the investment 
types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee.  The table also identifies certain provisions 
of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 
 


Authorized Investment Type
Maximum 
Maturity


Maximum 
Percentage 
Allowed


Maximum 
Investment in  


One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations None No limit No limit
U.S. Agency Securities None No limit No limit
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days No limit No limit
Commercial Paper 270 days No limit No limit
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A No limit No limit
Investment Contracts 30 years No limit No limit
 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


15 


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 


Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity its fair value is 
to changes in market interest rates.  The weighted average maturity of the County’s external investment 
pool as of June 30, 2014 was 370 days.  The weighted average maturity of the investments held by fiscal 
agent as of June 30, 2014 was 44 days. 


  
Credit Risk 
 


Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization (Standard and Poor’s).  Presented below is the minimum rating required by the 
California Government Code, or debt agreements and the actual rating as of June 30, 2014 of YECA’s 
investments that are exposed to credit risk (the County’s external investment pool is not rated): 


Investment Type
Minimum Legal 


Rating
Rating as of 


June 30, 2014
Cash with fiscal agent:
    Money market mutual funds A AAAm


 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 


Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government 
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party.  The California Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would 
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision 
for deposits:  The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made 
by State or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a 
depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The market value of 
the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the 
public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust 
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


16 


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)  
 
Custodial Credit Risk (Continued) 
 


As of June 30, 2014, YECA does not have any deposits with financial institutions.  As of June 30, 2014, 
YECA invested bond proceeds in the following investment types and were held by the same broker-dealer 
(counterparty) that was used by the YECA to buy the securities: 
 


Investment Type
Reported 
Amount


Money market mutual funds 699,392$        
 


 
NOTE 3:  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2014, is as follows: 
 


Restated
Balance Balance


July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014
CAPITAL ASSETS, NOT BEING DEPRECIATED
  Construction in progress 2,554,254$           775,963$       -$                   3,330,217$          


CAPITAL ASSETS, BEING DEPRECIATED
   Building and improvements 150,000                -                     -                     150,000               
   Computer equipment 4,293,582             55,203           (255,654)        4,093,131            
   Vehicles 40,520                  -                     -                     40,520                 
   Furniture and fixtures 117,627                -                     -                     117,627               
      Total capital assets, being depreciated 4,601,729             55,203           (255,654)        4,401,278            


LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FOR:
   Building and improvements (29,670)                (7,500)            -                     (37,170)               
   Computer and equipment (1,918,065)           (222,440)        255,654         (1,884,851)          
   Vehicles (37,110)                (3,410)            -                     (40,520)               
   Furniture and fixtures (104,958)              (4,224)            -                     (109,182)             
        Total accumulated depreciation (2,089,803)           (237,574)        255,654         (2,071,723)          
        Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 2,511,926             (182,371)        -                     2,329,555            
        Governmental activities capital assets, net 5,066,180$          593,592$      -$                   5,659,772$         


 
Depreciation expense was charged to the public safety - 911 communications function in the amount of 
$237,574 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 
 
The July 1, 2013 capital assets and net position have been increased $829,921 due to $194,384 in 
uncapitalized construction in progress and $635,537 in depreciation previously taken on $1,933,306 of 
capital assets that was incorrectly classified as equipment when it was related to construction in progress. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


17 


NOTE 4:  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the year ended June 30, 2014: 
 


Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within


June 30, 2013 Additions Retirements June 30, 2014 One Year


Capital lease 3,231,682$    -$                   (209,246)$      3,022,436$    216,781$       
Net OPEB obligation 276,756         113,000         (46,921)          342,835         -                     
Compensated absences 153,490         258,991         (235,483)        176,998         88,499           


Total Long-Term Liabilities 3,661,928$    371,991$      (491,650)$     3,542,269$   305,280$      


 
On November 18, 2010, YECA and the County of Yolo as co-issuer, issued $3,724,000 in ARRA-
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds (the Bonds) to finance (and reimburse for prior 
expenditures related to) the expansion, refurbishment, improvement, and equipping of its regional 
emergency communications system.  Net proceeds, after the payment of issuance costs, were deposited 
with Deutsch Bank, acting as trustee.  Concurrently, YECA along with the County of Yolo as co-issuer, 
entered into a Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement with Bank of America to finance the lease 
purchase of emergency communications equipment.  Lease payments will be used to finance the 
repayment of the Bonds.  The Bonds provide for a Federal subsidy of 45% of the interest paid on the 
Bonds to the issuer. The interest rate on the lease is 6.49%, with a maturity date of November 18, 2025. 
To obtain the subsidy, YECA must file a claim with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) when an interest 
payment on the Bonds is made. 
 
Future debt service requirements at June 30, 2014, are as follows: 
 


Year Ending June 30, Payments
2015 409,451$           
2016 403,064             
2017 396,446             
2018 389,590             
2019 382,487             


2020-2024 1,796,611          
2025-2026 497,856             
Total Future Lease Payments 4,275,505          


Less: Interest (1,253,069)         
Net Capital Lease 3,022,436$        


 
 
The carrying amount of the assets acquired under the capital lease totaled $2,938,153 at June 30, 2014, 
which is the cost of $3,025,222, net of accumulated depreciation of $87,069. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


18 


NOTE 5:  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description 
 


YECA contributes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. CalPERS provides 
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members 
and beneficiaries.    All full-time permanent safety employees are required to participate in CalPERS.  To 
be eligible for retirement, members of the Safety Coverage Group must be at least 50 years of age, and 
have a minimum of five years of CalPERS credited service.   
 
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by contract with CalPERS in accordance 
with the provisions of the Public Employees Retirement Law.  CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive 
annual financial report.  Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the 
CalPERS Executive Office - 400 Q Street - Sacramento, CA 95814. 
 
Funding Policy 
 


The employees' contribution rate is seven percent (7%) of their annual salaries.  YECA is required to 
contribute the amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members using the actuarial basis 
recommended by the CalPERS actuaries.   YECA makes the contributions required of its employees on 
their behalf and for their account. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by statute 
and therefore generally remain unchanged from year to year.  YECA is required to contribute the 
actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members.  YECA’s 
required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was 12.662% based on the June 30, 
2011 actuarial valuation.  The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State 
statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS. 


 
Annual Pension Cost 
 


For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, YECA's annual pension cost was $291,606.  The required 
contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal 
cost method with the contributions determined as a percentage of pay. 
 
Three year trend information is as follows: 
 


Fiscal Year Ended
Annual Pension 


Cost (APC)
Percentage of 


APC Obligation
June 30, 2012 284,046$         100%
June 30, 2013 290,351           100%
June 30, 2014 291,606           100%  


 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


19 


NOTE 6:  DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 
YECA offers to each non-safety employee a 401A Money Purchase Plan (MPP) administered by the 
VALIC Retirement Services Company.  Each participant has an individual account with VALIC into 
which all contributions are recorded.  The participants are offered various investment options through the 
MPP and are allowed to invest moneys in their account, at their own discretion, among the options.  
YECA may amend, modify, or terminate the MPP, upon approval of such amendment, modification, or 
termination by YECA’s Board of Director’s approval.  Employees covered by the MPP are eligible to 
participate from the date of employment.  The MPP defines YECA contributions which range from 3-6 
percent of employees base salary based on the employees designated employee group.  Employee 
contributions to the MPP are not permitted.  Under the MPP each participant is 100 percent vested in the 
amounts credited to the participants account at all times.  During the year ended June 30, 2014, 
contributions paid to the MPP were $35,926.     
 
NOTE 7:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)  
 
Plan Description 
 


YECA sponsors a single-employer defined benefit plan to provide postemployment health benefits to 
eligible retirees and their spouses through CalPERS (the Plan).  Benefit allowance provisions are 
established through resolution between YECA and three employee groups:  general, supervisor, and 
management.  The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. 
 
Plan members include current retirees and active employees of YECA.  Eligible plan members are YECA 
employees who have retired from active employment with YECA and have five years of service credit 
with CalPERS.  There is not a minimum service period with YECA to be eligible for the retiree 
health/medical benefit.  The benefit allowance provides a lifetime allowance to eligible plan members and 
their surviving spouses, if applicable.  The benefit allowance is provided in conjunction with the MOU 
terms allowing retirees to continue their current health insurance which also covers active members. 
 
Funding Policy 


  


The contribution requirements of YECA are established and may be amended by YECA's Board of 
Directors.  For eligible plan members, YECA provides a maximum monthly benefit allowance of $253 
for general and supervisor members and $700 per month for management.  Any and all insurance 
premium costs incurred by retirees above the monthly benefit allowance are borne by the retiree.  
YECA’s actuarially determined contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was 5.1% based 
on the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation.   
 
 


 
 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


20 


NOTE 7:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 


 


YECA's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities 
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  However, YECA contributes on a pay-as-
you-go basis, which for the year ended June 30, 2014 amounted to $46,921, or approximately 2.2% of 
payroll.  As a result of paying less than the ARC, YECA has a net OPEB obligation. 
 
The following table shows the components of YECA's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount 
actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in YECA's net OPEB obligation.  
 


Annual Required Contribution 115,000$                  
Interest on net OPEB obligation 10,000                      
Adjustment to ARC (12,000)                    
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 113,000                    
Contributions made (46,921)                    
Increase in net OPEB obligation 66,079                      
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 276,756                    
Net OPEB obligation - end of year 342,835$                  


 
 


YECA's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation were as follows: 
   


Fiscal Year Ended:
Annual OPEB 


Cost
Amount 


Contributed


Percentage of 
Annual OPEB Cost 


Contributed
Net OPEB 
Obligation


June 30, 2012 111,930$       39,905$         35.65% 205,394$       
June 30, 2013 115,892         44,530           38.42% 276,756         
June 30, 2014 113,000         46,921           41.52% 342,835          


 
Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 


As of June 30, 2013, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits was $1,356,000, all of which was unfunded.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $2,243,000, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
to the covered payroll was 60.5 percent.  
 
 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


21 


NOTE 7:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued) 
 


The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer 
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the basic financial statements, will present multiyear trend information 
as its available, about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.  


 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 


 


Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point.  The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce 
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.  
 
In YECA’s June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used.  The 
actuarial assumption for asset valuation included a discount rate of 4.0%.  The actuarial assumption for 
medical costs increase between 8.0% and 8.3% for the year ending June 30, 2015, reduced by decrements 
to an ultimate rate of 5.0% after the year ending June 30, 2020.  Both rates include 3.0% general inflation.  
The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a 
closed basis.  The amortization period at June 30, 2013 was 27 years. 
 
The benefit allowance was deemed a community rated plan and therefore, no implicit rate subsidy was 
determined in the actuarial valuation.   


 
 
 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


22 


NOTE 8:  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
YECA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
 
YECA participates in the Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Agency 
(YCPARMIA), a joint power agency (risk-sharing pool) made up of other governmental entities within 
the County.  YECA is covered for general and automobile, workers' compensation, property, pollution, 
and fidelity through YCPARMIA.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the California Joint Powers 
Insurance Agency (CALJPIA), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic general 
and automobile losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the CSAC Excess Insurance Authority 
(CSAC), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic workers’ compensation, 
property, and pollution losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the Fidelity and Deposit Company 
of Maryland (FDCM), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic fidelity losses.  
Loss contingency reserves established by YCPARMIA are funded by contributions from member 
agencies. 
 
The annual contribution YCPARMIA charges to each agency is based upon its pro-rata share of excess 
insurance premiums, charges for the pooled risk (losses) recognizing the deductible selected, claims 
adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs to operate the YCPARMIA.  Settled claims 
from these risks did not exceed coverage for the past three years.  YECA's deductible and maximum 
coverage are as follows: 
  
Coverage Deductible YCPARMIA CALJPIA CSAC FDCM
General and automobile 1,000$      500,000$     40,000,000$   -$                    -$                          
Workers' compensation 1,000        500,000       -                      50,000,000     -                            
Property 1,000        25,000         -                      959,357,100   -                            
Pollution -                100,000       -                      10,000,000     -                            
Fidelity 1,000        25,000         -                      -                      2,000,000             


 
 
 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


23 


NOTE 9:  LEASE COMMITMENTS 
 
As of June 30, 2014, future lease payments under operating leases were as follows: 
 


Year Ending
June 30:


2015 37,936$                  
2016 39,074                    
2017 40,246                    
2018 41,454                    
2019 28,183                    


Total Future Lease Payments 186,893$                


 
Rental expenditures were $37,013 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 
 
NOTE 10:  FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS 
 
In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An 
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this statement is to improve accounting 
and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves information 
provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided 
by other entities. This statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing 
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful 
information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional 
transparency. This statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by 
State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension 
Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or 
equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. This statement will require YECA to record a net 
pension liability related to its defined benefit pension plan, as defined by the standard. This statement is 
effective for YECA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  







 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(Unaudited) 


 
 


 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Required Supplementary Information 
 


Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefit Plan 
June 30, 2014 


 
 


See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 
24 


Valuation Date


Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL) 


Simplified Entry Age


Acturial 
Value of 
Assets


Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability 


(UAAL)
Funded 
Ratio


Annual Covered 
Payroll


UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Payroll


June 30, 2010 1,067,080$                -$                1,067,080$              0.0% 2,710,290$      39.4%
June 30, 2013 1,356,000                  -                  1,356,000                0.0% 2,243,000        60.5%


 
 







Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


Federal 88,131$       123,984$     91,590$       (32,394)$        
State -               13,327         23,708         10,381           


Charges for services 5,016,080    5,016,080    5,040,718    24,638           
Use of money and property -               -               3,126           3,126             
Other -               -               91,083         91,083           


Total Revenues 5,104,211    5,153,391    5,250,225    96,834           


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 3,649,548    3,649,548    3,445,802    203,746         
Services and supplies 1,103,595    2,488,637    1,223,295    1,265,342      


Debt service:
Principal 209,246       209,246       209,246       -                 
Interest 206,371       206,371       206,371       -                 


Capital outlay 10,000         10,000         37,500         (27,500)          
Contingencies 455,000       469,000       -               469,000         


Total Expenditures 5,633,760    7,032,802    5,122,214    1,910,588      


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures (529,549)      (1,879,411)   128,011       2,007,422      


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Capital lease proceeds 75,000         1,424,862    -               (1,424,862)     


Change in Fund Balance (454,549)      (454,549)      128,011       582,560         


Fund Balance - beginning of year 454,549       454,549       2,278,084    1,823,535      


Fund Balance - end of year -$             -$             2,406,095$  2,406,095$    


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014


Required Supplementary Information


See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
25







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


26 


NOTE 1:  SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
Because the June 30, 2010 actuarial valuation was the first valuation prepared under the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 45, there is no other historical information provided.  In the future, information 
from the three most recent valuations will be presented.   
 
NOTE 2:  BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 
YECA prepares and legally adopts a final budget on or before June 30 of each fiscal year.  YECA 
operations, commencing July 1, is governed by the proposed budget, adopted by the JPA Board of 
Directors in June of the prior year. 
 
After the budget is approved, the Executive Director is authorized to execute transfers between major 
budget units as long as the total expenditures for each budget unit remain unchanged.   
 
An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year on the modified accrual basis.  Additionally, 
encumbrance accounting is utilized to assure effective budgetary control.  Encumbrances outstanding at 
year-end represent the estimated amount of the expenditures ultimately to result if the unperformed 
contracts in process at year-end are completed or purchase commitments satisfied.  Such year-end 
encumbrances are reported as unassigned fund balance and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities 
because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year and included in the subsequent 
year's budget.  Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end and are subject to appropriation in the 
subsequent periods. 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


OTHER REPORT 
 
 
. 







 


27 


Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 


Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
Board of Directors  
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities and the general fund of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), as of and for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise YECA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 1, 2015. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 


In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered YECA’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified.  However, as described in the accompanying schedule of current year findings, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness and a 
significant deficiency. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of current year findings as items 2014-
001 and 2014-002 to be material weaknesses. 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of current year findings 
as item 2014-003 to be a significant deficiency. 
 
 


 


 


 


27 







 


28 


Compliance and Other Matters 


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether YECA’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.    However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.   
 


YECA’s Response to Findings 


YECA’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of 
current year findings.  YECA’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
 
Purpose of this Report 


The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 


 
Sacramento, California 
April 1, 2015 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Schedule of Current Year Findings 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


29 


Item 2014-001 – Prepaid Items 
 
Criteria: 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, costs related to services should be expensed within the 
fiscal year in which the service takes place.  Expenditures related to future periods should be recorded as 
a prepaid item. 
 
Condition: 
Expenditures related to fiscal year 2015 services were recorded as expenditures in fiscal year 2014. 
 
Cause: 
YECA records disbursements as expenditures when paid and does not analyze at year-end for 
prepayments, thus prepaid items were not identified and reclassified as such. 
 
Effect: 
As a result of this condition, an audit adjustment debiting “Prepaid items” on the Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Net Position and crediting “Services and supplies” expenditures on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance and expenses on the Statement of Activities for 
$242,968 was made. 
 
Recommendation: 
YECA should begin identifying and tracking the timeframes for which expenditures are for, and then 
analyzing them at year-end and adjusting for any portion that are for future fiscal years, thus improving 
the financial reporting process.  
 
Management Response and Corrective Action: 
YECA will book any prepays separately in a prepay account and expense it at the end of the year to 
account for the overlap of contract services between two fiscal years. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Schedule of Current Year Findings (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


30 


Item 2014-002 – Capital Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases 
 
Criteria: 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, costs directly related to the acquisition or construction of 
capital assets, should be capitalized and not expensed. In addition, capital assets that are being 
constructed, such as those that are financed by capital leases, are to be accounted for in construction in 
progress (CIP) until the projects have been significantly completed and have become operational. While 
those projects are being accounted for in CIP, no depreciation is to be taken. YECA defines capital assets 
as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. 
 
Condition: 
Transactions related to YECA’s Computer Aided Dispatch and Radio CIP projects were expensed.  In 
addition, other transactions related to the CIP projects were capitalized, however as equipment and 
depreciation was taken while the projects were begin constructed. 
 
Cause: 
YECA does not utilize primary general ledger accounts to record capital expenditure activity, thus costs 
incurred for capital activity were not identified and reclassified correctly as capital assets additions. 
 
Effect: 
As a result of this condition, a material audit adjustment debiting “capital assets” on the Statement of Net 
Position for a net of $1,840,287, crediting “services and supplies” expense on the Statement of Activities 
for $729,318, crediting “depreciation” expense on the Statement of Activities for $281,048, and crediting 
“net position – beginning of year” on the Statement of Activities for $829,921 was recorded.   
 
Recommendation: 
YECA should not only capitalize individual transactions that meet its capital assets definition as noted 
above, but should also capitalize all transactions related to construction projects. Note that during the 
period the projects are being constructed, depreciation should not be taken.  It’s only when the projects 
are substantially completed and placed into operation that depreciation should begin.  
 
Management Response and Corrective Action: 
YECA agrees with the finding and has taken corrective action to ensure all capital assets are identified in 
all transactions and construction projects when completed. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Schedule of Current Year Findings (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


31 


Item 2014-003 – General Ledger Account Activity 
 
Criteria: 
All transactions should be posted to the general ledger. 
 
Condition: 
Capital assets and long-term debt activity were not posted to the general ledger. 
 
Cause: 
Although YECA’s IT staff does review capital assets on hand at year-end to determine which ones need 
to be added and which ones need to be deleted from YECA’s capital assets listing and to determine 
depreciation expense for the year, YECA did not adjust the year-end capital assets balances in the general 
ledger.  In addition, although YECA did have their other postemployment benefits (OPEB) actuarial 
valuation, YECA did not adjust the year-end net OPEB obligation in the general ledger.  And although 
YECA implemented GASB Statement No. 65 last year, deferred charges were still recorded in the general 
ledger. 
 
Effect: 
As a result of this condition, audit adjustments needed to be made to correct the general ledger accounts 
to increase capital assets for a net of $9,791, to increase net OPEB obligation for $179,706, and eliminate 
the deferred charges amount of $48,000. 
 
Recommendation: 
YECA should post capital assets and long-term debt activity to the general ledger at year-end, before the 
audit. 
 
Management Response and Corrective Action: 
YECA will provide capital assets activity booked into our general ledger system prior to the beginning of 
the audit along with the long term debt activity. 
 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Status of Prior Year Findings 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


32 


Item 2013-001 – Capital Assets 
 
Criteria: 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, costs directly related to the acquisition or construction of 
capital assets, should be capitalized and not expensed. YECA defines capital assets as assets with an 
initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
 
Condition: 
Transactions relating to YECA’s Computer Aided Dispatch capital asset project were expensed. 
 
Cause: 
YECA does not utilize primary general ledger accounts to record capital expenditure activity, thus costs 
incurred for capital activity were not identified and reclassified as capital asset additions. 
 
Effect: 
As a result of this condition, a material audit adjustment debiting “capital assets” on the Statement of Net 
Position and crediting “services and supplies” expense on the Statement of Activities for $426,524 was 
recorded. 
 
Recommendation: 
YECA should provide training to its employees identifying the differences between capital expenditures 
and noncapital expenditures, thus improving the financial reporting process.  
 
Management Response: 
Management agrees with the finding and has reassigned the tracking of capital assets from IT to 
administrative staff and will provide training and develop procedures to capture capital asset costs on the 
capital asset list. 
 
Status: 
IT continues to track capital assets and provides capital assets activity to administrative staff at year-end 
for reporting in YECA’s financial statements. In addition, the capital assets activity provided by IT to 
administrative staff did not capture all capital expenditures. Therefore, this condition continues (see 
current year finding 2014-003). 
 
 
 
 
 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Status of Prior Year Findings (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 


 
 


33 


Item 2013-002 – OPEB Actuarial Valuation 
 
Criteria: 
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, an entity with fewer than 200 members is required to 
have an actuarial valuation performed at least on a triennial basis. 
 
Condition: 
YECA did not have an actuarial valuation performed for its OPEB obligation within the last three fiscal 
years that covers fiscal year 2012/2013. YECA obtained an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2010, 
which was to be utilized for fiscal years 2009/2010, 2010/2011 and 2011/2012. YECA subsequently 
obtained an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2013 that will be utilized for fiscal years 2013/2014, 
2014/2015 and 2015/2016. 
 
Cause: 
YECA was not fully aware of the actuarial valuation requirements stipulated by GASB Statement No. 45, 
thus YECA did not contract with an actuary to perform its OPEB plan valuation covering fiscal year 
2012/2013. 
 
Effect: 
As a result of this condition, YECA is not in compliance with GASB Statement No. 45. 
 
Recommendation: 
YECA management should obtain GASB Statement No.45 training, as well as have an actuarial valuation 
performed to be in compliance with the requirements of the standard.  
 
Management Response: 
YECA’s last actuarial valuation was completed for fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, covering fiscal year 
2010/2011 and fiscal year 2011/2012.  Under GASB Statement No. 45, a valuation would cover a three 
year period and was assumed fiscal year 2012/2013 was covered.  Each year the funding model for 
retirees is budgeted on a fixed amount.  Since, fiscal year 2012/2013 had lapsed during this audit period 
and funding was already in place, it posed minimal risk to begin the new actuarial valuation period 
beginning with fiscal year 2013/2014.  This decision made fiscal sense and provided an additional year 
extending the period through fiscal year 2015/2016.  The new actuarial valuation was completed by Bartel 
Associates on June 6, 2014, covering fiscal year 2013/2014, fiscal year 2014/2015, and fiscal year 
2015/2016. 
 
Status: 
As noted under Management Response, YECA obtained an actuarial valuation on June 6, 2014 covering 
fiscal years 2013/2014, 2014/2015, and 2015/2016, therefore we consider the recommendation 
implemented. 









